
 
 

 
 

 
Gloucester Road    Tewkesbury   Glos   GL20 5TT   Member Services Tel: (01684) 272021  Fax: (01684) 272040 

Email: democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk    Website: www.tewkesbury.gov.uk 

6 January 2020 
 

Committee Overview and Scrutiny 

Date Tuesday, 14 January 2020 

Time of Meeting 4:30 pm 

Venue Tewkesbury Borough Council Offices, 
Severn Room 

 

ALL MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE ARE REQUESTED 
TO ATTEND 

 

Agenda 

 

1.   ANNOUNCEMENTS  
   
 When the continuous alarm sounds you must evacuate the building by the 

nearest available fire exit. Members and visitors should proceed to the 
visitors’ car park at the front of the building and await further instructions 
(during office hours staff should proceed to their usual assembly point; 
outside of office hours proceed to the visitors’ car park). Please do not re-
enter the building unless instructed to do so.  
 
In the event of a fire any person with a disability should be assisted in 
leaving the building.  

 

   
2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
   
 To receive apologies for absence and advise of any substitutions.   
   
3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
   
 Pursuant to the adoption by the Council on 26 June 2012 of the 

Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of Conduct, effective from 1 July 
2012, as set out in Minute No. CL.34, Members are invited to declare any 
interest they may have in the business set out on the Agenda to which the 
approved Code applies. 

 

   

mailto:democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk


 Item Page(s) 

 

 2 

4.   MINUTES 1 - 12 
   
 To approve the Minutes of the meeting held on 3 December 2019.  
   
5.   EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN 13 - 16 
   
 To determine whether there are any questions for the relevant Lead 

Members and what support the Overview and Scrutiny Committee can 
give to work contained within the Plan. 

 

   
6.   OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

2019/20 
17 - 24 

   
 To consider the forthcoming work of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee. 
 

   
7.   GFIRST LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP (LEP) PRESENTATION  
   
 To receive a presentation from the GFirst Local Enterprise Partnership 

(LEP). 
 

   
8.   ENVIRO-CRIMES UPDATE 25 - 32 
   
 To consider progress made and agree future monitoring via the 

performance tracker with any significant matters to note being reported 
through the Member Update Sheet.  

 

   
9.   SEPARATE BUSINESS  
   
 The Chairman will move the adoption of the following resolution: 

 
That under Section 100(A)(4) Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of 
the Act. 

 

   
10.   TRADE WASTE SERVICES 33 - 51 
   
 (Exempt –Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 

Act 1972 –Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information)) 
 
To consider progress to date and recommend to the Executive Committee 
the preparation of a detailed business case for a pilot proposal.  

 

   
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

TUESDAY, 11 FEBRUARY 2020 

COUNCILLORS CONSTITUTING COMMITTEE 

Councillors: G J Bocking, C L J Carter, K J Cromwell (Chair), P A Godwin, H C McLain,                        
P D McLain, H S Munro, J W Murphy (Vice-Chair), P W Ockelton, J K Smith, R J G Smith,                   
S A T Stevens, P D Surman, M J Williams and P N Workman  

  

 



 Item Page(s) 

 

 3 

Substitution Arrangements  
 
The Council has a substitution procedure and any substitutions will be announced at the 
beginning of the meeting. 
 
Recording of Meetings  
 
In accordance with the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, please be 
aware that the proceedings of this meeting may be recorded and this may include recording of 
persons seated in the public gallery or speaking at the meeting. Please notify the Democratic 
Services Officer if you have any objections to this practice and the Chair will take reasonable 
steps to ensure that any request not to be recorded is complied with.  
 
Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors, Officers, 
the public and press is not obstructed. The use of flash photography and/or additional lighting 
will not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in advance of the meeting.  



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
Minutes of a Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held at the 

Council Offices, Gloucester Road, Tewkesbury on Tuesday, 3 December 2019 
commencing at 4:30 pm 

 

 
Present: 

 
Chair Councillor K J Cromwell 

 
and Councillors: 

 
G J Bocking, C L J Carter, P A Godwin, H C McLain, P D McLain, H S Munro, J K Smith,                     

R J G Smith, P D Surman, M J Williams and P N Workman 
 

also present: 
 

Councillor D W Gray 
 

OS.57 ANNOUNCEMENTS  

57.1 The evacuation procedure, as noted on the Agenda, was taken as read.  

OS.58 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

58.1  Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J W Murphy (Vice-Chair) and 
P W Ockelton.  There were no substitutions for the meeting.  

OS.59 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

59.1 The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of 
Conduct which was adopted by the Council on 26 June 2012 and took effect from 1 
July 2012. 

59.2  There were no declarations made on this occasion. 

OS.60 MINUTES  

60.1  The Minutes of the meeting held on 22 October 2019, copies of which had been 
circulated, were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.  

OS.61 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN  

61.1  Attention was drawn to the Executive Committee Forward Plan, circulated at Pages 
No. 11-15.  Members were asked to determine whether there were any questions 
for the relevant Lead Members and what support the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee could give to the work contained within the plan. 

61.2  The Head of Corporate Services pointed out that, at the Executive Committee 
meeting the previous week, it had been noted the Agenda for the meeting on 8 
January 2020 was very heavy and it had been agreed that Management Team 
would discuss whether any items could be pushed back. 

1

Agenda Item 4



OS.03.12.19 

61.3  It was 

RESOLVED That the Executive Committee Forward Plan be NOTED. 

OS.62 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20  

62.1  Attention was drawn to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
2019/20, circulated at Pages No. 16-24, which Members were asked to consider. 

62.2  A Member questioned when Ubico would next be reporting to the Committee and 
was reminded that this was an annual report which would be taken to the meeting in 
July 2020 although it was noted that a separate report on trade waste was due in 
January 2020.  It was subsequently 

RESOLVED That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
2019/20 be NOTED. 

OS.63 GLOUCESTERSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL UPDATE  

63.1  Members received an update from the Council’s representative on the 
Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel on matters discussed at the last meeting of 
the Panel held on 12 November 2019. 

63.2  The Council’s representative on the Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel 
advised that the Police and Crime Commissioner had updated the Panel on recent 
activity including the new focus on “every crime matters”.  A particular area of 
emphasis was the retail crime review and a report had been prepared to look at how 
the Gloucestershire Police had been responding to rising retail crime.  The report 
was constructively critical of the approach and it was noted that retailers were 
clearly not satisfied when it had been discussed at a recent conference in 
Gloucester.  The conference had been attended by a Superintendent who had 
responded positively to the concerns raised and had committed to producing an 
action plan to address them within the next month.  The Police and Crime 
Commissioner had explained that, given scare resources, it was always necessary 
to consider what response was reasonable.   

63.3 Members were informed that crime had continued to rise over the past year, albeit 
at a reduced rate, but detection rates had improved.  A rural crime week had 
recently been held to focus attention and resources on tackling the wide range of 
crimes across the county’s extensive rural areas.  Finding the people committing 
these crimes was very difficult and there was a need for greater effort in tackling the 
disposal of stolen property to stop criminals from making money from it.  The Police 
and Crime Commissioner had also raised concern about the physical state of the 
courts in Gloucestershire which were dilapidated with inadequate facilities to 
segregate witnesses and the public from the accused and a lack of access for the 
disabled.  It was noted that 80 electric Police vehicles had been ordered and the 
number of charging points had been significantly increased; the Council’s 
representative pointed out that the vehicles would be used for dealing with enquiries 
rather than for frontline incident response.  The annual anti-drink driving campaign 
would be carried out across the county with a focus on rural areas – the initial focus 
was on education and prevention changing to enforcement in early December.  The 
Police and Crime Commissioner had welcomed the extra money for policing 
promised by the government; however, it could not be spent until it had passed 
through a budget following the election.  The Panel had also discussed the impact 
of the “record everything” policy in light of the criticisms discussed at the last 
meeting - the Police and Crime Commissioner had confirmed this was the approach 
and that it undoubtedly resulted in additional resources being spent on form filling to 
ensure compliance. 

2



OS.03.12.19 

 

63.4 The Panel’s representative advised that another key issue discussed at the meeting 
was the impact of mental health on Gloucestershire Police.  It was noted that only 
25% of the annual total of 250,000 calls received by Gloucestershire Police actually 
related to crimes; 75% related to social services with 148 young people reported 
missing to the Police in September alone.  The Police and Crime Commissioner had 
noted that both greater resources and greater co-ordination of national and local 
responses to the national mental health crisis were needed.  One response had 
been deployment of the triage car which carried a mental health nurse along with a 
Police Officer; however, currently this only operated during the peak period of 
demand for four days per week so additional resources promised by the 
government could be used to expand this and free up Police Officers to deal with 
crime. 

63.5 The Panel had also received the Chief Executive report from the Office of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner and there was a general discussion about how the Panel 
could help to address some of the issues raised, either through sponsoring research 
or writing letters to appropriate government departments or ministers, for instance, 
in relation to the mental health issue. 

63.6 A Member queried whether anything was being done to encourage greater reporting 
of retail crime as he worked in that sector and was aware that only 5% was currently 
recorded.  The Council’s representative indicated that he was not aware of a 
particular drive to increase reporting but he undertook to ask the question and report 
back to Members.  He indicated that retailers were frustrated as it took a lot of time 
and effort to record these crimes – often for very little in the way of outcomes – but 
without that information the true extent of the crime went unrecognised.  Another 
Member went on to indicate that there had been a problem with theft in his Ward 
over the summer and the group of people responsible had been threatening and 
intimidating; however, there had been no Police response, despite numerous calls 
to 101 and 999, so he was keen to understand the approach to dealing with anti-
social groups.  The Council’s representative provided assurance that the Police 
were well aware of that issue but he undertook to take up the point about the lack of 
response.  He pointed out that co-ordination between the constabularies in 
neighbouring counties could be improved which would help in terms of the disposal 
of stolen goods – goods were often stolen in one area and then sold on in another in 
order to avoid detection.  A Member went on to indicate that crimes of violence 
seemed to be increasing nationally and he questioned if that had been recognised 
and whether  there was a strategy for dealing with it.  The Council’s representative 
advised that this topic had not been discussed at the last meeting but the statistics 
for Gloucestershire were lower than the national average and the county was very 
safe compared the rest of the country; nevertheless, violent crime, particularly knife 
crime, was on the increase. 

63.7 With regard to mental health, a Member asked whether there was a county view on 
the impact of the Mental Capacity Act as clearly a lot hinged on mental capacity in 
terms of the safety of the individual and the community in which they lived.  The 
Council’s representative advised that anecdotal evidence showed that, on a typical 
day, frontline Police Officers could spend up to five hours in hospital waiting for a 
mental health professional to asses someone who had been picked up at an 
incident – this was clearly not a sensible way to use resources.  He hoped the 
additional funding which was supposedly coming would start to change things but it 
was important to appreciate this was a society-wide issue.  The Member questioned 
whether it was being suggested that young people who went missing should not be 
reported to the Police and the Council’s representative stressed that the Police had 
a duty to prioritise missing young persons and that was something which the public 

 

3



OS.03.12.19 

  would expect to happen; however, the mental health issues being increasingly 
experienced were very expensive and this was draining an already depleted 
resource base. 

63.8 The Chair thanked the Council’s representative for his update and indicated that it 
would be circulated to the Committee following the meeting.  It was subsequently 

RESOLVED That the Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel Update be 
NOTED. 

OS.64 PERFORMANCE REPORT - QUARTER 2 2019/20  

64.1  The report of the Head of Corporate Services, circulated at Pages No. 25-75, 
attached performance management information for quarter two of 2019/20.  The 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee was asked to review and scrutinise the 
performance information and, where appropriate, identify any issues to refer to the 
Executive Committee for clarification or further action to be taken. 

64.2 Members were advised that this was the second quarterly monitoring report for 
2019/20 and progress against delivering the objectives and actions for each of the 
Council Plan priorities was reported through the Performance Tracker, attached at 
Appendix 1 to the report.  Key actions for the quarter were highlighted at Paragraph 
2.3 of the report and included Council approval for an additional £20m towards 
commercial property investment; extension of the Public Services Centre to let a 
further 1,000 square feet to Gloucestershire County Council; successful High Street 
Heritage Action Zone expression of interest for Tewkesbury Town; 1,325 
businesses benefiting from Growth Hub support; collation and submission of 
comments on the Local Industrial Strategy; designation of Woodmancote 
Neighbourhood Development Plan (NDP) bringing the total to 16 NDPs across 21 
Parishes; proactive approach to enviro-crimes with 12 fixed penalty notices issued, 
six cases referred to One Legal for prosecution, Officer attendance at Parish 
Council meetings, four community events and 35 patrols undertaken; and a 
workshop held in partnership with Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group to 
support development of a local integrated health partnership.  The Head of 
Corporate Services indicated that, due to the complex nature of the actions being 
delivered, it was inevitable that some would not progress as smoothly or quickly as 
envisaged and the details of these were set out at Paragraph 2.4 of the report. 

64.3 In terms of the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), Members were informed that the 
status of each indicator was set out at Paragraph 3.2 of the report. Of the 17 
indicators with targets, 10 were on target, three were below target but the annual 
target would be achieved, two were below target and the target was unlikely to be 
achieved and two were awaiting data.  Key areas where KPIs were performing 
particularly well were included at Paragraph 3.3 of the report and particular 
reference was made to KPI 7 as 706 visitors had entered the Growth Hub during the 
first two quarters so this action was on track to meet the 1,000 target for the year, 
and KPIs 21 and 22 which related to processing of new benefits claims and change 
of circumstances which had both improved due to new ways of working. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4



OS.03.12.19 

64.4 During the debate which ensued, the following queries and comments were made in 
relation to the Performance Tracker: 

Priority: Promoting and Supporting Economic Growth 

P41 – Objective 2 – Action a) 
Deliver employment land 
through the Joint Core 
Strategy and Tewkesbury 
Borough Plan – A Member 
sought clarification as to the 
amended target date and 
whether this was realistic. 

The Head of Development Services 
confirmed that the target date was spring 
2020 rather than 2019 as incorrectly stated in 
the report.  She reminded Members that 
Tewkesbury Borough Council was working 
with two other Joint Core Strategy authorities 
so there were a lot of complex issues to 
address but she was as confident as she 
could be that the new date would be 
achieved.  Although it was a very challenging 
timetable, the revised date ensured that the 
Borough Plan remained on course for 
examination in 2021 and adoption in 2022.  
She stressed that it was not a quick process 
– the Joint Core Strategy had taken longer 
than anticipated as further work had been 
required at the examination stage – and, 
whilst it was possible to make up time at 
different points during the process, clearly it 
was important not to fall too far behind at this 
early stage. 

P42 – Objective 3 – Action a) 
Produce a detailed strategy 
for the delivery of growth at 
Junction 9 – A Member noted 
that the comments against 
this action referenced the 
Garden Town project and she 
questioned whether it would 
be appropriate for Members 
to receive an update to 
understand what was 
happening and how the 
Garden Town impacted on 
other actions such as the 
delivery of growth at Junction 
9. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

The Head of Development Services advised 
that the Tewkesbury Garden Town Member 
Reference Panel was currently meeting every 
two weeks, although she accepted that the 
wider membership was not engaged so she 
would be happy to arrange a Member 
seminar in the New Year and to work with the 
Communications Team on the most 
appropriate method for communicating key 
messages as the Garden Town project 
progressed. 

5



OS.03.12.19 

P45 – Objective 5 – Action b) 
Review the tourism resources 
to maximise the tourist 
provisions in the borough – A 
Member raised concern that 
the target date for this action 
had now changed four times 
and he sought an update on 
how this was progressing. 

The Head of Development Services reminded 
Members that this action was not just about 
the Tewkesbury Tourist Information Centre, 
which had its own particular issues 
associated with its location in the Hat Shop, 
and she advised that a review of the broader 
service was underway; ultimately she felt 
there was a tourism post which could be 
utilised more effectively and she hoped to be 
able to report back to Members in March 
2020.  The Deputy Chief Executive undertook 
to ensure the action was revised to reflect the 
fact that it was a strategic tourism review 
rather than simply being focused on the 
future of the Hat Shop. 

Key Performance Indicators for priority: Economic Development 

P46 – KPIs 3 and 4 – Number 
of business births and 
business deaths – A Member 
noted that there was no data 
for 2019 and asked when this 
would be provided. 

The Head of Development Services advised 
that the information was backdated which 
was why the last available information was 
from 2017; due to collection times, the new 
data would be available in quarter three 
which would be included in the next 
performance report and would relate to 2018. 

Priority: Growing and Supporting Communities  

P50 – Objective 2 – Ensure a 
supply of land to 
accommodate a five year 
requirement – A Member 
questioned why there was no 
Key Performance Indicator for 
the five year housing land 
supply. 
 

The Head of Development Services 
explained that five year housing land supply 
was calculated on an annual basis therefore it 
remained the same each quarter.  In 
response to a query as to whether a ruling 
had been made on whether housing built in 
advance could be included in the housing 
land supply figures, the Head of Development 
Services advised that the High Court Judge 
had decided not to rule on the position 
deeming it a matter for each decision-maker.  
As such, the Council would continue to 
defend its position and that would be tested 
through the appeal process when it was able 
to demonstrate a five year supply which she 
hoped would be in the new financial year.  It 
was noted there were no new cases 
nationally to test the position. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

6



OS.03.12.19 

P54 – Objective 4 – Action a) 
– Continue to improve the 
proactive homelessness 
prevention programme – A 
Member raised concern that 
the commentary box 
contained a lot of jargon 
which made it difficult to 
understand, for instance, 
‘kata type questions’ 
‘Liberating Structures’ and 
‘Trello boards’. 

The Head of Community Services apologised 
and indicated that he would take this on 
board for future reports. 

P54 – Objective 4 – Action b) 
Achieve the Council’s 
affordable homes target by 
working with local housing 
providers – A Member noted 
that a total of 109 affordable 
homes had been delivered in 
the first two quarters of 
2019/20 with only 36 of those 
in quarter two and she 
questioned why so many 
more had been achieved in 
quarter one. 

The Head of Community Services advised 
that this was linked to when developments 
came on line; as the Council had little control 
over this, delivery of affordable homes was 
not evenly spread across the year. 

P56 – Objective 4 – Action d) 
Develop a programme to 
work with landlords to ensure 
residents have a supply of 
rented properties to meet 
their needs – A Member 
noted that a new additional 
post had been recruited to 
within Housing Services 
which would assist with the 
additional workload 
associated with the new legal 
duties and she asked how 
this was progressing, 
particularly as the target date 
for this action had been 
amended twice previously.  

The Head of Community Services reminded 
Members that Tewkesbury Borough Council 
had led the successful bid for Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG) funding to incentivise 
landlords to take tenants on lower incomes.  
Slow progress had been made due to a key 
member of staff leaving the authority; 
however, there had been further 
developments during the third quarter and the 
scheme which was about to be adopted 
would include rent in advance, an enhanced 
deposit scheme and tenancy support.  It was 
noted that Tewkesbury Borough Council was 
no further behind any of the other 
Gloucestershire authorities despite the delay.  
A launch event for landlords and agents was 
being organised by the person who had been 
appointed to the new post within Housing 
Services which would take place in January.  
Members were advised that the MHCLG 
project had been due to end in March but he 
was pleased to report that the pilot could 
continue until all of the money had been 
spent which was great news.  He undertook 
to bring a full report on the project to the 
Committee in September 2020. 

 
 

7



OS.03.12.19 

Key Performance Indicators for priority: Growing and Supporting 
Communities 

P57-58 – KPIs 8, 9 10 and 11 
in relation to housing 
applications and 
homelessness – A Member 
questioned why there was no 
direction of travel for these 
KPIs as it was unclear if they 
were performing well or not, 
for instance, 334 homeless 
applications had been 
accepted in 2018/19 with 22 
in the first two quarters of 
2019/20. 

The Head of Community Services explained 
that legislative changes meant that the 
information being compared was not like for 
like.  It was intended to review the KPIs ready 
for 2020/21 to coincide with the new Housing 
Strategy and consideration would be given to 
more meaningful measures which could be 
compared year on year.  In the meantime, he 
undertook to ensure that more comments 
were included in the narrative so it was 
clearer if performance was positive or 
negative.  A Member felt that it was right to 
reconsider the KPIs in light of the significant 
changes brought about by the Homelessness 
Reduction Act 2017 so he would be 
supportive of a complete review.   

Priority: Customer focused services 

P63 – Objective 3 – Action b) 
Introduce the option for 
paperless billing for council 
tax and business rates – A 
Member sought further detail 
of the issues experienced and 
whether this action would still 
be delivered. 

The Head of Corporate Services explained 
that it had not been an easy process and 
there had been issues around the 
performance of the supplier so One Legal 
was currently looking at the contract.  The 
Council’s Digital Developer was looking at an 
in-house solution and he would know within 
the next seven to 10 days whether that could 
be achieved for February 2020. 

Key Performance Indicators for priority: Customer focused services 

P71 – KPI 31 and KPI 32 – 
Percentage of Freedom of 
Information (FOI) requests 
answered on time and 
percentage of formal 
complaints answered on time 
– A Member questioned why 
only 108 of the 142 FOI 
requests and 52 of the 62 
formal complaints had been 
answered within the 20 
working days deadline. 

The Head of Corporate Services confirmed 
that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
received an annual report on formal 
complaints.  In terms of the first two quarters 
of the year, 129 formal complaints had been 
received of which 115 had been answered on 
time.  Of the remaining 14, six related to 
planning; two to waste and recycling; two to 
grounds maintenance; two to environmental 
health; one to customer services; and one to 
housing – whilst complaints were across the 
board, six of the 13 complaints received by 
planning had not been answered within the 
deadline.  It was noted that there was an 
opportunity to discuss an extension of time 
with the complainant if it was not possible to 
respond within 20 working days.   

The Head of Development Services indicated 
that this matter had been discussed by 
Management Team and she was very keen to 
address the situation.  She reiterated that 
planning complaints were often complex and 

8



OS.03.12.19 

required input from other departments such 
as One Legal so if a complaint could not be 
resolved within 20 working days, Officers 
should be negotiating a new deadline to 
ensure that they remained compliant with the 
KPI. 

With regard to FOIs, the Head of Community 
Services felt it was important to recognise the 
sheer amount of requests, some of which 
asked for information dating back a number 
of years, or were repeat requests with a slight 
variation in the data or format being asked 
for.  This was incredibly time consuming and 
Management Team was considering what 
information could be published on the 
Council’s website in order to reduce the 
resources currently being used for FOIs. 

A Member sought clarification as to the 
number of FOIs that came under one of the 
exemptions i.e. where the information 
requested did not have to be provided.  The 
Head of Corporate Services confirmed that a 
very small number were subject to 
exemptions and he undertook to circulate the 
figures following the meeting. 

64.5 Turning to the financial information, the Head of Finance and Asset Management 
indicated that the budget summary for quarter two showed a £18,530 deficit against 
the profiled budget; although this was a reduction from the £71,190 deficit in quarter 
one, it was still a deficit and was not comparable to the previous year.  The table at 
Page No. 31, Paragraph 4.2 of the report detailed how the deficit had arisen, much 
of which was as reported at quarter one.  Employee costs had generated a surplus 
of £111,439 largely through managing vacancies by utilising current staff to cover 
work in the short term and limiting use of agency staff.  The deficits reported in 
relation to supplies and services, and to a large extent on payments to third parties, 
were in relation to expenditure incurred in delivering the European Parliamentary 
Elections.  Members were advised that the Council received a grant to cover the 
cost of the elections which was shown as an income surplus within Democratic 
Services; overall the Democratic Services account was in balance.  In terms of other 
areas contributing to the deficit for payments to third parties, as reported at quarter 
one, there had been overspends on additional grounds maintenance resources for 
Ubico and the extra cost of the depot arising from the review of the use of space. 
The overspend on transfer payments related to housing benefit claimant payment 
and the recovery of expenditure from the government.  It was noted that the 
Housing Benefit team had identified two significant overpayments as a result of 
claimant error which dated back several years.  Whilst the debt could be recovered 
in the long-term, this took a long time which had resulted in an increase in the level 
of debt held in relation to housing benefit; it had been wrongly assumed that the 
level of debt would fall, as such, a £50,000 deficit had been recognised on the 
budget.  Members were advised that income was in a surplus position of £200,970 
with areas such as garden waste and car parking performing well.     

64.6 The Head of Finance and Asset Management advised that the corporate codes 
included other sources of financing needed to balance the budget.  There was a 
significant budget deficit being shown on investment properties due to not being 
able to secure another commercial opportunity.  This had meant that the income 
expected to be received in rent had not been achieved but the loss had been 

9



OS.03.12.19 

mitigated by treasury management costs having been lowered through reduced 
borrowing and no minimum revenue provision being made.  The final element was 
business rates which was showing a surplus of £51,701 at the half year stage which 
was helping to reduce the overall deficit position for the Council. The 
Gloucestershire-wide business rates pool was going well with a potential £250,000 
benefit to Tewkesbury Borough Council which would eradicate the current deficit; 
however, there was still risk in pooling, particularly as the NHS Trust was looking for 
mandatory relief on the business rates position which was currently being heard in 
Court.  He reiterated that the overall position for quarter two was a deficit of £18,530 
and Appendix 2 to the report provided more detail per service area.  Appendix 3 to 
the report showed the capital budget position as at quarter two which was currently 
showing a small deficit due to incurring higher than predicted expenditure on 
Disabled Facilities’ Grants; however, in reality that was covered by a government 
grant with up to £1.2m available this year.  It was noted that the capital programme 
included a budget of £6.6m to secure a commercial investment property which was 
now profiled to happen in the next quarter of the financial year.  Appendix 4 to the 
report provided a summary of the current usage of available reserves which showed 
that £410,795 had been spent as at the end of September 2019. 

64.7 With regard to transfer payments, a Member noted that there was a deficit of 
£130,000 with a predicted subsidy recovery of £80,000; however, given that debt 
had increased, a £50,000 deficit on the budget had now been recognised and he 
questioned whether that was adequate.  In response, the Head of Finance and 
Asset Management confirmed there had been a slow reversal in recent months with 
a reduction in big claimant errors so things were heading in the right direction.  
Whilst he hoped the projection was accurate, he provided assurance that this would 
be kept under review and could be changed if necessary in quarter three.  The 
Member went on to draw attention to two big overspends in relation to Ubico 
detailed in Paragraphs 4.6.1 and 4.8.3 of the report.  Given that there seemed to be 
a consistent overspend each year, he suggested that it would be beneficial to 
increase the Ubico budget to account for that.  He also pointed out that the situation 
with recycling credits was not going to improve as supermarkets were now cutting 
out packaging which would reduce the amount of recyclate and therefore the 
amount of credits.  The Head of Community Services recognised that it looked like a 
significant overspend but Officers had been aware of the £150,000 overspend going 
into 2019/20 and had planned for that accordingly.  The nature of the waste service 
meant there was often unforeseen expenditure and overspends were not 
uncommon but, given the contract was worth around £5m, a deficit which was 
effectively less than £50,000 was not a bad position.  Officers were working with 
Ubico to address the issues that had been experienced in respect of grounds 
maintenance rather than simply increasing the budget as the likelihood was that any 
additional money would be spent.  He recognised that recycling credits had 
plateaued but pointed out that performance was still very good compared with the 
rest of the country; however, recycling credits may disappear altogether over the 
next few years which could be damaging, particularly if the government prevented 
local authorities from charging for garden waste services which was one of the 
proposals being consulted upon in its waste and resources strategy.  The Head of 
Finance and Asset Management went on to explain that a contingency had been set 
aside in the reserves to cover any additional overspend in respect of grounds 
maintenance and the issue with depot space had come up in the early part of the 
year so there had been time to put reserves in place to cover that.  In terms of the 
reduction in recycling credits, this was due to increased levels of contamination as 
opposed to anything Ubico was doing; a high level of contamination had not been 
assumed in the estimates for 2019/20 so that would be reflected in the budget for 
the following year.  A Member felt that the public needed to be updated on what 
could be recycled and what was causing recyclate to be contaminated and the Head 
of Community Services provided assurance that was in hand.  In response to a 
query as to the likely end of year position, the Head of Finance and Asset 

10



OS.03.12.19 

Management advised that his view was that there would be a small surplus which 
could be further bolstered by the business rates pool; whilst the surplus would be 
much less than the previous year, this would still be a positive position for the 
Council. 

64.8 Having considered the information provided, it was 

RESOLVED That the performance management information for quarter two of 
2019/20 be NOTED. 

OS.65 COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY  

65.1 Attention was drawn to the report of the Head of Corporate Services, circulated at 
Pages No. 76-106, and the revised Appendix 2 – Media Protocol, circulated 
separately.  Members were asked to consider the Communications Strategy 2020-
24 and recommend to the Executive Committee that it be approved. 

65.2 Members were informed that the previous Communications Strategy had been 
approved by the Executive Committee in 2017 so it had been necessary to carry out 
a review to ensure the strategy remained in line with best practice.  Clear 
communication helped to strengthen relationships with the public, residents, 
stakeholders, Councillors and employees and to inform them of service changes in 
response to the challenges facing local government.  The revised Communications 
Strategy, attached at Appendix 1 to the report, covered a four year period from 2020 
to 2024 and would ensure that the Council embraced modern digital 
communications - such as social media, the Council’s website and email – whilst 
recognising the need to continue with more traditional methods e.g. face to face 
meetings and telephone contact.  The strategy identified key communication 
principles, achievements to date, what people thought of the authority, objectives 
going forward and how they would be achieved.  This was supported by an action 
plan which would be monitored by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on an 
annual basis.  Appendix 2, circulated separately, set out the Council’s media 
protocol which outlined the approach to dealing with media enquiries, developing 
press releases and identifying spokespersons. 

65.3 A Member questioned how Ward Councillors were contacted if they were required 
to respond to a media enquiry and the Communications Officer advised that this 
was dependent on the timescale but would usually be via email, followed up with a 
telephone call.  A Member pointed out a typographical error on Page No. 9 of 
Appendix 2 where a reference was made to a Director rather than a Head of Service 
and the Corporate Services Manager undertook to ensure this was amended prior 
to consideration by the Executive Committee. 

65.4 A Member drew attention to Page No. 84 of the report which stated that 58 
members of the Citizens’ Panel had responded to a snapshot survey regarding 
communications and he questioned how many members were on the Panel in total.  
In response, the Corporate Services Manager advised that there were 
approximately 250 volunteer members so this was a fairly high response rate.  She 
pointed out that when the wider customer satisfaction survey was carried out, this 
was promoted on social media and the Council’s website in order to encourage a 
greater response.  The Panel engaged regularly with the Council on a range of 
issues and consideration was being given as to how to thank them for their time.  A 
Member queried what criteria was used to establish the Panel and was advised that 
the only requirement was for members to be residents of Tewkesbury Borough.  It 
was noted that there was a link on the Council’s website for anyone who was 
interested in becoming a member of the Panel and that the Panel was regularly 
promoted in the Borough News.  The Chair suggested that this could also be 
mentioned by Members at Parish and Town Council meetings. 

11



OS.03.12.19 

65.5 It was 

RESOLVED That it be RECOMMENDED TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
that the Communications Strategy 2020-24 be APPROVED, 
subject to an amendment to Page No. 9 of Appendix 2 to change 
the reference from Director to Head of Service. 

 The meeting closed at 6:00 pm 

 
 

12



1 
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN 2019/20 
REGULAR ITEM: 

 Forward Plan – To note the forthcoming items. 
 

Addition to 8 January 2020 

 Churchdown and Innsworth Neighbourhood Development Plan.   

 Communications Strategy.  

 Discretionary Housing Payments.  

 

Committee Date: 5 February 2020  

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Budget 2020/21 (Annual). To recommend a budget for 2020/21 to 
the Council.  

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management. 

No. 

Financial Update - Quarter 
Three 2019/20. 

To consider the quarterly budget position. Head of Finance and Asset 
Management. 

No. 

Prosecution of Housing and 
Tenancy Fraud on behalf of 
Social Housing Providers.  

To consider a proposal that the Council 
undertakes prosecutions on behalf of 
Social Housing providers where the 
property is situated outside of  the 
Counter Fraud Unit Partnership area and 
where the Counter Fraud Unit has 
undertaken the investigation. 

Head of Corporate Services.  No.  

Housing Strategy Monitoring 
Report (Year 4) (Annual). 

To approve the Housing Strategy 
Monitoring Report for Year Four.   

Housing Services Manager. Yes, from January meeting as not 
urgently required in January. 

Joint Core Strategy 
Authorities Joint 
Community Infrastructure 
Levy (CIL) Governance 
Arrangements.  

To make a recommendation to Council 
regarding the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Governance 
Arrangements. 

Head of Development Services.  Yes, deferred to allow further time 
to consider the options.   

13

A
genda Item

 5



2 
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold 

 

 

Committee Date: 5 February 2020  

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Joint Core Strategy 
Authorities Review of the 
Community Infrastructure 
Levy (CIL) Charging 
Schedules. 

To make a recommendation to Council 
regarding the Review of the 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
Charging Schedules. 

Head of Development Services.  Yes, deferred to allow further time 
to consider the options.   

Whistleblowing Policy.  To approve the Whistleblowing Policy.  Head of Corporate Services. No.  

ICT Strategy.  To approve the ICT Strategy. Head of Corporate Services.  Yes, deferred to allow further time 
to develop the strategy.  

Trade Waste. To consider the long-term 
sustainability of a trade waste service 
going forward following a 
recommendation from the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee. 

Head of Community Services. No. 

Confidential Item: 
Irrecoverable Debts Write-
Off Report (Quarterly). 

To consider the write-off of irrecoverable 
debts.  

Head of Corporate Services. No.  

(To be considered in private because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972 – Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information)). 

 
 
 
 

14



3 
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold 

 

 
 
 

Committee Date: 4 March 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Grounds Maintenance 
Working Group Report  

 

To consider the recommendation from 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 
respect of the work undertaken by the 
Grounds Maintenance Working Group 
and to determine whether there is a 
continuing role for the Group. 

Head of Community Services.  No.  

 
 
 

Committee Date: 8 April 2020     

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Performance Management 
Report – Quarter Three 
2019/20. 

To receive and respond to the findings of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee‘s 
review of the quarter three performance 
management information. 

Head of Corporate Services.  No.  

Council Plan 2016/20 
Refresh (Annual). 

To consider the Council Plan and make a 
recommendation to Council. 

Head of Corporate Services. No.  

High Level Service Plan 
Summaries (Annual). 

To consider the key activities of each 
service grouping during 2018/19. 

Head of Corporate Services. No.  

 
 
 

15



4 
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold 

 

 
 
PENDING ITEMS 
 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item 

Shopfronts Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD). 

To agree the document for the purposes of consultation.  

Spring Gardens Regeneration Phase 1a 
report. 

To agree the recommendation of the preferred option for the regeneration of Spring Gardens. 

Parking Strategy Review – July 2020.  To consider the recommendations from Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

Parking Strategy Review – September 
2020.  

To consider the statutory responses to the Parking Strategy Review.  

 

16



 

NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20 
 

REGULAR ITEMS: 

 Executive Committee Forward Plan 

 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2019/20 
 

Additions to 14 January 2020 
 
Deletions from 14 January 2020 

 Safeguarding Policy – moved to 11 February 2020. 
 

 

Committee Date: 11 February 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Growth Hub Presentation To receive a presentation on the 
Growth Hub. 

Deputy Chief Executive Yes – due to be part of a joint 
presentation with the GFirst LEP 
in January 2020. 

Safeguarding Policy To consider the revised Safeguarding 
Policy 

Head of Community Services Yes – due to be taken to the 
meeting on 14 January 2020.  The 
Policy has been drafted and is 
being circulated to the District 
Safeguarding Network. 

Grounds Maintenance 
Working Group Report 

To consider the progress made by the 
Working Group and to review the Terms 
of Reference and make a 
recommendation to the Executive 
Committee as to whether there is a 
continuing role for the Group.  

 

Head of Community Services. No. 

17

A
genda Item

 6



 

NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

Committee Date: 11 February 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Tewkesbury Borough News 
Review 

To consider the progress made against 
the recommendations arising from the 
Tewkesbury Borough News Review. 

Corporate Services Manager No. 

Annual review of the 
effectiveness of the Council’s 
involvement in the 
Gloucestershire Health 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

To conduct the annual review of the 
effectiveness of the Council’s 
involvement in the Gloucestershire 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
in order to authorise payment of the 
Council’s contribution to the running 
costs for the forthcoming year.  

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Gloucestershire Health 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (14 January 2020). 

N/A No. 

Gloucestershire Police and 
Crime Panel Update. 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (3 February 2020). 

N/A No. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



 

NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

 
 
 

Committee Date: 10 March 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Parking Strategy Review To endorse the findings of the Parking 
Strategy Review and approve the draft 
strategy for public consultation. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management 

Yes – deferred from 14 January 2019 
due to scheduling of consultation 
events, delay in parking survey 
analysis and need to move the 
December Working Group meeting 
due to the Parliamentary election. 

Parking Strategy Review  To review consultation responses and 
make a recommendation to the Executive 
Committee. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management. 

Yes – deferred from 3 December 
2019 to reflect new timetable as 
discussed as the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee meeting on 10 
September 2019. Moved to June 
2020. 

Performance Report – 
Quarter 3 2019/20. 

To review and scrutinise the performance 
management information and, where 
appropriate, to require response or action 
from the Executive Committee. 

Head of Corporate Services No. 

Workforce Development 
Strategy Review 

To consider progress made against 
delivery of the Workforce Development 
Strategy. 

Head of Corporate Services No – agreed at Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee meeting on 9 
April 2019. 

Gloucestershire Health 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (3 March 2020). 

N/A No. 

19



 

NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

Committee Date: 10 March 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (26 February 2020). 

N/A No. 

 

20



 

NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

 
 

Committee Date: 14 April 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Work Programme 
2020/21 

To approve the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Work Programme for the 
forthcoming year. 

Head of Corporate Services  No. 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Annual Report 
2019/20 

To approve the annual report as required 
by the Council’s Constitution to ensure 
that the activities of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee are promoted both 
internally and publicly to reinforce 
transparency and accountability in the 
democratic process. 

Head of Corporate Services No. 

Community Safety 
Partnership Update 

To consider the report on local 
arrangements for community safety. 

Head of Community Services No.  

Housing Strategy Monitoring 
Report 

To consider the progress made in 
respect of the outcomes identified in the 
Housing Strategy Action Plan. 

Head of Community Services No. 

Customer Care Strategy To consider the progress made in 
relation to the actions contained within 
the Customer Care Strategy Action Plan 
2019/20 and to endorse the action plan 
for 2020/19. 

 

 

Corporate Services Manager No. 

21



 

NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

Committee Date: 14 April 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Development Services 
Improvement Plan 

To receive an update on the outcomes of 
the customer satisfaction survey on 
experience of planning application 
process and the pre-application planning 
advice service and, if relevant, an 
explanation on any outstanding actions. 

Head of Development Services. No – agreed at the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee meeting on 22 
October 2019. 

Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Update 

 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (18 March 2020). 

N/A No. 

Gloucestershire Police and 
Crime Panel Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (27 March 2020). 

N/A No. 

22



 

NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

 
PENDING ITEMS 
 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item 

Review of Corporate Enforcement Policy Review by O&S Workshop – agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 13 June 
2017 – March 2019. 

Review of Complaints Policy Identified for review in the Corporate Policies and Strategies Report and agreed by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 4 September 2018 – Overview and Scrutiny Committee advised at 
its meeting on 10 September 2019 that this will be via Workshop or Working Group. 

Depot Services Working Group Updates Bi-annual updates to Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be scheduled at appropriate times once the 
Working Group has agreed its work programme. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23



 

NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

ITEMS FOR INCLUSION IN 2020/21 WORK PROGRAMME 

Performance Management – Quarter 4 
and Full Year 2019/20 

June 2020 - To review and scrutinise the performance management information and, where appropriate, 
to require response or action from the Executive Committee. 

Parking Strategy Review To review consultation responses and make a recommendation to the Executive Committee – Deferred 
from 10 March 2020 due to scheduling of consultation events, delay in parking survey analysis and need 
to move the December Working Group meeting due to the Parliamentary election. 

Planning Committee Overturns To review and scrutinise Planning Committee overturns 2019/20 (to include comparisons with other local 
authorities; a summary page to set out the trends that Officers had identified; and a Call-in section to 
include a reason for the application going to Planning Committee e.g. Member call-in, objection from 
Parish Council) – as agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 23 July 2019. 

Presentation from Severn Trent Water Date to be agreed once work has finished (August 2020?) - To receive a presentation from Severn Trent 
Water on the works carried out to the Severn Ham as a result of the Scrutiny Review of Water Supply 
Outage – as agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 10 September 2019. 

Battlefield Site Project Report  September 2020 - To receive a progress update on the Council Plan action to explore the potential to 
increase the heritage offer at the Battlefield site - as agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at 
its meeting on 10 September 2019. 

Private Rented Housing Sector 
Scheme 

September 2020 – To receive a report on progress of the Private Rented Housing Sector Scheme – 
as agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 3 December 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

24



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to: Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date of Meeting: 14 January 2020 

Subject: Enviro-Crimes Update  

Report of: Head of Community Services 

Corporate Lead: Deputy Chief Executive 

Lead Member: Lead Member for Clean and Green Environment 

Number of Appendices: 1 

 

Executive Summary:   

It was agreed at Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18 June 2019 that an update on the 
Enviro-Crime Action Plan be brought to this Committee.  The majority of the actions within the 
plan are progressing well and on target. A robust approach continues to be taken against 
offenders, a number of prosecutions have been taken and fixed penalties issued resulting in 
over £3,625 plus costs. Tackling enviro-crime is now an established priority within the Council 
and procedures and experienced officers continue to ensure it is a priority.   

Recommendation: 

1. To CONSIDER the progress being made tackling enviro-crimes across the 
borough. 

2. To AGREE that, as tackling enviro-crime is now fully embedded within the day to 
day operations of Environmental Health, no further reports will be brought 
unless there is any change in this position but any significant matters of 
information will be included on the Member Update Sheet and performance will 
continue to be monitored in the quarterly performance tracker. 

Reasons for Recommendation: 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee requested an update on enviro-crime activities but, as 
this work is now embedded into the day to day activities of the section, it is suggested that any 
further significant matters of information be included on the Member Update Sheet. 

 
 

Resource Implications: 

Responsibility for the enforcement of enviro-crimes lies with the Environmental Health Team. 
Ubico has responsibility for clearing fly-tipped material, littering and dog fouling on public land. 

There are no additional resource implications as a result of this report.  

 
 
 
 
 

25

Agenda Item 8



Legal Implications: 

Several enviro-crimes, such as fly-tipping, are criminal offences and therefore investigations 
must only be undertaken by suitably authorised and competent officers. Failure to conduct 
investigations in accordance with statutory guidelines relating to criminal investigation 
procedure may expose the Council to legal challenges against enforcement action. 

In particular, officers must pay particular attention to the provisions contained within the 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA), when considering whether to employ 
overt or covert surveillance measures and the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 (PACE) 
when conducting investigations and gathering evidence under caution. 

In dealing with the investigation of enviro-crimes, and determining the most appropriate course 
of action, officers will adhere to the Council's Enforcement Policy to ensure that any action is 
proportionate, consistent and transparent. 

Risk Management Implications: 

Enviro-crimes cause an area to be unsightly and can spoil the look of the area, negatively 
impacting upon communities.  Failure to tackle enviro-crimes could result in a potential 
reputational risk to the Council. Enviro-crimes are costly to deal with and a reduction in such 
crimes will have a benefit in terms of financial risk management for the Council. 

Performance Management Follow-up:   

The number of enviro-crimes is a Key Performance Indicator (KPI) for the Council and is 
monitored by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on a quarterly basis via the performance 
tracker. Progress on tackling enviro-crime has been reported back to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on a six monthly basis.  

Environmental Implications:  

Enviro-crimes have a direct affect on both visual and physical environmental quality; therefore, 
a reduction in enviro-crimes will have a positive effect on protecting the environment.  

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 It was agreed at the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18 June 2019 that an update 
on the 2019/20 Enviro-Crime Action Plan be brought to this Committee. A copy of the 
updated plan detailing progress made is attached as Appendix 1.  

1.2 Members will note there has been consistent and steady progress against the majority 
of actions. This confirms that the tackling of enviro-crime is firmly embedded within the 
day to day operations of the Environmental Health section. Officers are all now well 
trained and experienced in investigating and prosecuting those that besmirch the 
borough through their enviro-crimes. 

1.3 The areas where limited progress has been made includes re-establishing a 
countywide Enviro-Crime Group. Discussions with other authorities have indicated that 
there is no enthusiasm for a specific enviro-crime focused group; however, there is a 
desire to re-instate the broader Gloucestershire Pollution Group. Discussions are 
ongoing regarding arranging a meeting of this group in early 2020.   

1.4 Four joint initiatives were programmed to be carried out throughout the year. Visits to 
Parish Councils have, however, proved to be extremely useful and popular creating 
closer ties with local communities. As such, to date, one joint initiative has been carried 
out with another programmed for Q4 2020.  

26



2.0 ENFORCEMENT ACTION 

2.1 A robust approach continues to be taken to enforcing enviro-crime. So far this year 14 
fixed penalty notices have been served, two successful prosecutions obtained, one 
hearing scheduled for January 2020 and two sets of case papers presented to One 
Legal for prosecution.  

2.2 Of particular note is the fly-tipper who attracted the ire of the Magistrate after admitting 
that the reason they fly-tipped was because they did not have time to wait at the civic 
amenity site. This resulted in a £1,000 fine plus costs.  

3.0 WASTE AWARE WEBPAGE 

3.1 A new waste webpage has been created on the Council’s website aimed at promoting 
the Council’s approach to tackling enviro-crime. The page provides information relating 
the responsibilities of waste producers, carriers and disposers. It also provides links to 
the Council’s waste and recycling services. The page can be found at 
https://www.tewkesbury.gov.uk/waste-aware?rq=waste%20aware . 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

4.1 None  

5.0 CONSULTATION 

5.1 Consultation with the Lead Member for Clean and Green Environment has taken place 
on a regular basis during the Portfolio briefings. 

6.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

6.1 Overview and Scrutiny Environmental Crime Report 2014 

Environmental Health Enforcement Policy 

7.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES 

7.1 N/A 

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 Contained within existing resources. 

9.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Reducing environmental crimes can improve community safety as well as economic, 
social and environmental sustainability.  For example, a reduction in dog fouling may 
increase confidence in use of community land and playing fields. 

10.0 IMPACT UPON (Value for Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
and Safety) 

10.1 Joint working with partner agencies such as the Police, Environment Agency and 
Housing Associations will enable organisations to pool resources, which may enable 
the Council to demonstrate improved value for money when tackling enviro-crimes. 

 

 

27

https://www.tewkesbury.gov.uk/waste-aware?rq=waste%20aware


11.1 RELATED DECISIONS 

11.2 None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: Overview and Scrutiny Committee report – October 2017. 
 
Contact Officer:  Environmental Health Manager (Acting) 
 01684 272175 alastair.low@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
 
Appendices:  Appendix 1 – Enviro-Crime Action Plan 2019/20   
 
 

 

28

mailto:alastair.low@tewkesbury.gov.uk


Appendix 1 

ENVIRO-CRIMES ACTION PLAN 
 

Recommendation / Action  Responsible 
Officer 

Target Date Status Progress to Date  

Prosecute enviro-crime offenders 
and publicise the results of any 
enforcement action taken including 
penalties imposed. 

EH 
Manager/PEHO 

Ongoing  

 

14 Fixed Penalty Notices Issued – Total £2,625 

2 Successful Prosecutions - £1,510 

1 Hearing Scheduled Jan 2020 

2 sets case papers being prepared for non-
payment of fines.  

Undertake a minimum of 4 joint 
operations with partnership 
agencies. 

EH 
Manager/PEHO 

31 March 2020 
 Oct 2019 joint operation with Police, 

Environment Agency, VOSA and the Forest of 
Dean District Council. A Further joint initiative is 
planned for Q4 

Consider and implement where 
practicable opportunity for 
mapping reported enviro-crimes 
onto GIS system. 

EH 
Manager/PEHO 

31 March 2020 
 A GIS/Systems administrator is currently being 

recruited.  

Review and map existing enviro-
crime signage. 

EH 
Manager/PEHO 

31 march 2020 
 A GIS/Systems administrator is currently being 

recruited. 

Continue to work with Property 
Services Team and Ubico to 
identify hotspots and look for any 
opportunities to design out enviro-
crime from those areas. 

EH 
Manager/PEHO 

Ongoing 
 No opportunities have been identified.   

Develop strategies to tackle 
enviro-crime specific to the 
hotspots. 

EH 
Manager/PEHO 

31 March 2020  

 

Instigated series of Parish Council meetings to 
identify hotspots. Series of patrols instigated 

29



Appendix 1 

Recommendation / Action  Responsible 
Officer 

Target Date Status Progress to Date  

Develop relationship with National 
Farmers’ Union and Rural Crimes 
Officer to develop strategy to 
tackle enviro-crime. 

EH 
Manager/PEHO 

31 March 2020  

 

Meeting planned for Q4 with National Farmers’ 
Union and Rural Crime Officer. 

Seek to reinstate Countywide 
Enviro-Crime Group. 

EH 
Manager/PEHO 

1 October 2019  

 

 

Attempts have been made to engage with other 
authorities to re-instate the Countywide Group 
but no real enthusiasm due to current demand 
on resources. 

Publicise and promote Public 
Space Protection Order. 

EH 
Manager/PEHO 

31 March 2020  

 

 

14 Parishes visited 

36 patrols carried out 

4 Information  

3 Community Events attended 

Leaflets publicising PSPO left at 7 Vets 

Introduce program of patrols at 
enviro-crime hotspots. 

EH 
Manager/PEHO 

30 June 2019  36 patrols carried out across borough. 

Introduce schedule of Parish 
Council liaison meetings that will 
achieve contact with a min of 50% 
of PC’s. 

 

 

 

 

EH 
Manager/PEHO 

30 June 2019  

 

14 Parish Councils visited 

15 information packs sent out following request. 

 

30



Appendix 1 

Recommendation / Action  Responsible 
Officer 

Target Date Status Progress to Date  

Co-ordinate, promote and support 
the work of the volunteer litter 
pickers. 

EH 
Manager/PEHO 

Ongoing  

 

There are now 276 registered litter pickers, 70 of 
which have been recruited since April this year. 
The Council has provided two trollies to assist 
litter picking groups, helping them to reach less 
accessible areas 

Identify all resources across the 
Council that could assist with 
enviro-crime reporting and 
enforcement. 

EH 
Manager/PEHO 

31 March 2020  

 

 

Discussions are ongoing with Property Services 
regarding installing dash cams on the pool fleet 
to aid with identifying those who throw litter from 
vehicles. Close working between Environmental 
Health and Community and Economic 
Development continues to take place 

Ensure that all relevant officers are 
suitably trained and meet the 
necessary enviro-crime 
competencies. 

EH 
Manager/PEHO 

Ongoing  

 

 

All Officers except the recently appointed 
Community and Business Assistant are fully 
competent. Additional update training has been 
provided in relation to general enviro-crime and 
scrap metal dealers. Further training relating to 
“Witness Essentials” is being provided for 
Officers in January 2020. 

Develop a network of communities 
to report enviro-crime acting as 
“eyes and ears”. 

EH 
Manager/PEHO 

Ongoing  

 

 

Officers have attended four community events 
throughout the year, providing information in 
relation to identifying and reporting enviro-crime. 
As stated above, a number of presentations 
have been delivered to Parish Councils. This is 
with a view to informing Parish Councils of what 
can be done to tackle enviro-crime and to 
strengthen relationships with communities. 

 
 

31



Appendix 1 

STATUS KEY 
 
 

 Action is progressing well and on target to achieve completion date/within agreed budget (if applicable) etc. 

 Action has some issues or delays but is likely to achieve completion date/within agreed budget (if applicable) etc.  

 Significant risk to not achieving the action or there has been significant slippage in the timetable. 

 Action is complete. 

 Action not yet commenced. (may not yet be programmed for action) 

 32



Document is Restricted

33

Agenda Item 10



Document is Restricted

40


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Executive Committee Forward Plan
	6 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2019/20
	8 Enviro-Crimes Update
	Appendix 1 Enviro-Crime  Action Plan 2019_20

	10 Trade Waste Services
	Appendix 1- Ubico-  Integrated Trade Waste Paper v1.4


